
 

Waverley Borough Council 

Council Offices, The Burys,  
Godalming, Surrey 
GU7 1HR 
www.waverley.gov.uk 
 

 

  

 
 

 
 
To: 

 
All Members of the LICENSING SUB-

COMMITTEE B 
(Other Members for Information) 
 

When calling please ask for:  

Kimberly Soane, Democratic Services officer 

Policy and Governance   

E-mail: kimberly.soane@waverley.gov.uk  

Direct line: 01483 523258 

Calls may be recorded for training or monitoring 

Date: 17 September 2021 

 
Membership of the Licensing Sub-Committee B 

 

Cllr Michael Goodridge 
Cllr Roger Blishen 
 

Cllr Anna James 
 

Dear Councillors 
 

A meeting of the LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE B will be held as follows:  
 

DATE: THURSDAY, 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 

TIME: 10.00 AM 
PLACE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, THE BURYS, 

GODALMING 

 
The Agenda for the meeting is set out below. 
 

Yours sincerely  
 

ROBIN TAYLOR 
 
Head of Policy and Governance 

 

Most of our publications can be provided in alternative formats.  For an audio version, 

large print, text only or a translated copy of this publication, please contact 
committees@waverley.gov.uk or call 01483 523351 

 

 

mailto:committees@waverley.gov.uk


 

NOTE FOR MEMBERS 
 

Members are reminded that contact officers are shown at the end of each report and 

members are welcome to raise questions etc in advance of the meeting with the 
appropriate officer. 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 To elect a Chairman for the Sub-Committee B meeting. 
 

2.   TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING ON 1 JUNE 2021   

 
 To agree the minutes of the last meeting, published on the Council’s website. 

 
3.   LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR A STREET TRADING LICENCE 

- MAMMA LOURDES PIZZA VAN, RECREATION GROUND CAR PARK, 

COXCOMBE LANE, CHIDDINGFOLD  (Pages 3 - 18) 
 

 Recommendation 
 
The Licensing Committee reviews consultation feedback and determines the 

application of Silvio Brocardo of Mamma Lourdes (a mobile food business 
offering cooked to order pizza) for a consent to trade at the Recreation Ground 

car park, Coxcombe Lane, Chiddingfold. 
 

4.   LEGAL ADVICE   

 
 To consider any legal advice relating to any applications in the agenda. 

 
[Note: Reports relating to confidential or exempt information may be excluded 
from those copies of the agenda provided for inspection by members of the 

public if they relate to matters during which the meeting is likely not to be open 
to the public.] 

 
 

    
  For further information or assistance, please telephone  

Kimberly Soane, Democratic Services officer, on 01483 523258 or by 
email at kimberly.soane@waverley.gov.uk 

 

    
 



WAVERLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

DATE 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
Title:  

 
Application for Street Trading Consent – Recreation Ground car park,  

Coxcombe Lane, Chiddingfold 
 

 

 
Portfolio Holder: Cllr. Nick Palmer Portfolio Holder for Operational and Enforcement 

Services 
 
Head of Service: Richard Homewood, Head of Environmental & Regulatory Services 
 
Key decision: No 
 
Access:  Public  
  

 
 
1. Purpose and summary 
 
1.1 To determine a new application for a licence to trade in a designated consent 

street, which includes a road, footway or other area to which the public have 
access without payment. 

 
2. Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Licensing Committee reviews consultation feedback and determines the 

application of Silvio Brocardo of Mamma Lourdes (a mobile food business 
offering cooked to order pizza) for a consent to trade at the Recreation Ground 
car park, Coxcombe Lane, Chiddingfold.  

  
3. Reason for the recommendation 
 

3.1      Under the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982, a street trading 
consent is required by any person wishing to sell goods on streets designated as 
a ‘consent street’. On 9 August 2021 Silvio Brocardo of Mamma Lourdes applied 
for street trading consent to trade at the Recreation Ground car park, Coxcombe 
Lane, Chiddingfold.  Following consultation an objection was received and in line 
with the Council’s Street Trading Policy 2021, the Licensing Committee is 
required to determine the application. 
 

4. Background 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



4.1 The Act governing street trading within the Waverley area is the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, Schedule 4. Further detail on 
the legislation is provided in Annexe A. Streets can be designated prohibited 
streets or consent streets.  

 
           A ‘Prohibited’ street means a street in which street trading is prohibited 
 
           A ‘Consent’ street means a street in which street trading is prohibited unless the 

Council has given consent. This means that anyone who wishes to trade on a 
consent street (which includes a road, footway or other area to which the public 
have access without payment) must hold a street trading consent. 

 
4.2 The current Street Trading Policy came into force on 5 April 2021, along with the 

Council’s resolution to make all streets in Waverley consent streets other than 
designated prohibited streets. There are some circumstances in which street 
trading consent will not be required, as detailed in the Policy and on the Council’s 
website, Will I need street trading consent – Frequently asked Questions. 

 
4.3 The aim of the Policy is to prevent obstruction of streets, ensure public safety, 

recognise the importance of the local economy and community events, and 
prevent nuisance or annoyance to people within the area.  

 
4.4      The Policy requires local stakeholders and the public to be consulted on an 

application, with a normal 28 day consultation period. 
 
4.5 Paragraphs 2.3 and 2.5 of the Policy detail that in considering any application for 

the grant or renewal of a street trading consent the following issues will be taken 
into account before determination: 

 
           Public order 
           Whether the street trading activity or activities represent, or are likely to 

represent, a substantial risk to public order 
 
           Public nuisance 
           Whether the street trading activity or activities represent, or are likely to 

represent, a substantial risk of nuisance to the public from noise or misbehaviour. 
Particular regard to this will be had in respect of consents in predominantly 
residential areas and due regard will be had to the character of the 
neighbourhood. 

 
           Public safety 
           Whether the location of the street trading activity or activities represent, or are 

likely to represent, a substantial risk to the public from the point of view of 
obstruction, fire hazards, unhygienic conditions, danger that may occur when a 
trader is accessing the site, and overcrowding of the site/area. Overcrowding 
includes the capacity of the street trading area having regard to the potential 
maximum attendance on the site by the public, and the consequent risk of over 
congestion impacting adjacent roads to the site. 

 
           Needs of the area 

Page 4

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Portals/0/Documents/services/business-and-licensing/licences-and-registrations/street%20trading/2%20Street%20Trading%20Policy%20April%202021.pdf?ver=D275KFFlePzF05URfpDu8A%3d%3d
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Services/Business-and-licensing/Licences-and-registrations/Street-trading/Street-trading-prohibited-locations
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/Services/Business-and-licensing/Licences-and-registrations/Street-trading/Will-I-need-street-trading-consent-Frequently-Asked-Questions


           The sufficiency of other trading outlets to serve the needs of an area will always 
be considered. A new consent is unlikely to be granted where it is considered that 
adequate like provision already exists.  

 
4.6 Officers determine applications for street trading consent where there have been 

no relevant objections. If any relevant objections arise applications are referred to 
the Licensing Committee for determination as detailed in paragraph 2.1 of the 
Policy. A relevant objection is one made by a person, business or body that is 
likely to be directly affected by a successful application. In addition, the objection 
must not be vexatious or frivolous and should concern itself only with matters 
likely to be affected by a successful application. Note the Council is under no duty 
to grant consent to trade on a street that has been designated as a Consent 
Street.  There is no right of appeal against the refusal of consent, or the 
application of conditions attached to a Consent, contained in the 1982 Act.  

 
4.7 Street trading consents are issued for a set period, usually one year, and for 

specific locations and times when street trading can take place. All consents 
issued carry the Standard Consent Conditions detailed in the Street Trading 
Policy, detailed in Annexe B. Other conditions may be attached to a Consent and 
will be relevant to the category of Consent issued and the nature of the local 
environment. The pool of typical conditions that can be added is detailed in the 
Street Trading Policy and are shown in Annexe C. A Consent may also attract 
conditions in addition to or instead of those found in the pool of conditions 
according to their individual merits. 

  
4.8 On the 9th August 2021 Silvio Brocardo of Mamma Lourdes applied for street 

trading consent to trade at the Recreation Ground car park, Coxcombe Lane, 
Chiddingfold on:  

 
           Wednesdays 16.00-20.00 hours. 
            
           The application form is included at Annexe D and a location map of the proposed 

site is attached as Annexe E.  The application site is owned by Chiddingfold 
Parish Council who have given permission to the applicant to trade at that 
location, subject to compliance with the conditions and the payment of a weekly 
fee.  

 
4.9       When an application for a street trading consent is received, the following 

stakeholders are consulted: the police, the fire authority, the highways authority, 
local ward councillors, local Chambers of Commerce, local Town/Parish Council, 
Portfolio Holder for Operational and Enforcement Services, and the Licensing 
Committee Chairman and Vice Chairman. They were emailed on 9 August 2021, 
along with The Head of Environmental and Regulatory Services, Environmental 
Health Manager (Environmental Protection) and Environmental Health Manager 
(Food and Safety) about the application. Additionally: 

 
 

o At the start of the consultation period the applicant placed a notice of the 
application on a lamp post at the trading location, advising people to 
contact Environmental Health if they had any concerns about the 
application. 

Page 5



 
o The public were also notified of the application via the Council’s social 

media platforms on 10 August 2021.  
 

o Chiddingfold Parish Council also published details of the application on 
their website 

 
           The deadline for consultation responses was 6 September 2021, 28 days after 

the start of the consultation period. 

            

4.10   There has been a single objection to the application, received from a nearby 

resident although there has been considerable local support expressed.  Please 
see Annexe F for a copy of the representation (redacted as appropriate). 

  

4.11    The representation raised concerns relating to public nuisance and needs of the 
area, summarised below:- 

• Noise, litter, smell, traffic, footfall, intrusion  

• There are already takeaway services available from the two pubs in the village  

 

4.12   In addition to a street trading consent, mobile food businesses are required to 
have a minimum FSA Food Hygiene Rating Score of level 3 or above. Currently 
the business holds a 5 rating with Guildford Borough Council. 

 
4.13   The Committee will be aware that operation of a stall between the hours of 23:00 

and 05:00 hours to sell hot food and drink also requires a Premises licence under 
the Licensing Act 2003 (‘late night refreshment’). The trader does not intend to 
trade during these times.  

 
4.14    The Licensing Committee needs to consider feedback from the consultation and 

determine the application having regard to the matters that can be considered for 
the granting of a street trading consent as detailed in paragraph 4.5 above. There 
are three options for consideration: 
  
 Option 1 – Grant a street trading consent as applied for 
 Option 2 – Grant a street trading consent but with conditions relating to hours or                              

trading or goods allowed to be sold etc. 
 Option 3 – Refuse the application for a street trading consent. 
 
Whichever option is determined by the committee will take immediate effect.  

 
 
5. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Service Plan 
 
5.1 Effective control of street trading will contribute to the strategic priorities of 

supporting a strong local economy and improving the health and wellbeing of our 
residents and communities.  

  
 
6. Implications of decision 

Page 6



 
6.1 Resource (Finance, procurement, staffing, IT)  
 
 If any consent is refused, under our policy, a full refund of the application fee for 

each refused location would need to be issued, this is currently £365 per location.  
If consent is granted, the applicant has agreed to pay a fee of £20 a week to 
Chiddingfold Parish Council for use of the site.  

 
 
6.2 Risk management 
 
 The Street Trading consent area allows street traders with a consent, to trade, 

supplying goods and/or food on a regulated site approved by the Committee. This 
offers safeguards to the public who can recognise legitimate traders. It should 
help prevent the sale of illegal or unsafe goods or food. It also helps to prevent 
illegal obstruction of the highway. If street trading is not regulated it is likely to 
give rise to complaints about the adverse impact of street trading in some 
locations, potentially placing additional demands on the service.   

  
6.3 Legal 
 
6.3.1 Details of the process and legal procedures are set out within the body of the 

report in line with arrangements under Schedule 4 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
6.3.2   The Committee may grant an application (in part or full), apply any reasonable 

conditions, time restrictions, restrictions on the type of goods sold etc. The 
Council may also refuse the application. 

 
6.3.3   The grounds for refusal are considered in Paragraph 7 of Schedule 4 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 
 
6.4 Equality, diversity and inclusion 

 
There are no direct equality, diversity or inclusion implications in this report. 
Equality impact assessments are carried out when necessary across the Council 
to ensure service delivery meets the requirements of the Public Sector Equality 
Duty under the Equality Act 2010. 
 

6.5 Climate emergency declaration 
 

Where consents are granted conditions can be added to a consent to prevent an 
impact on noise, odour and air pollution. Effective control of street trading 
activities will assist in mitigating their impact on the local environment and the 
community.  

 
 
7. Consultation and engagement 
 
7.1 Consultation undertaken is detailed within the body of the report. 
 

Page 7



 
8. Other options considered 
 
8.1 Not applicable   
 

 
9. Governance journey 
 
9.1 Licensing Committee  
 
 

Annexes: 
 
Annexe A – Street Trading Legislation 
Annexe B – Standard Consent Conditions 
Annexe C - Pool of Conditions  
Annexe D – Application form 
Annexe E – Location map of proposed site 
Annexe F – Consultation Response 
 
Background Papers 
 
Street Trading Policy 2021 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
Name:  Holly Appleton / Jeanette Guy 
Position: Environmental Health Officer / Environmental Health Manager 

(Environmental Protection) 
Telephone: 01483 523281/ 01483 523005 
Email:  holly.appleton@waverley.gov.uk  / jeanette.guy@waverley.gov.uk 
 
Agreed and signed off by: 

Legal Services: 15 September 2021 

Head of Finance: 16 September 2021 

Strategic Director: date 

Portfolio Holder: date  

Page 8

mailto:holly.appleton@waverley.gov.uk
mailto:jeanette.guy@waverley.gov.uk


 
Annexe A 

 
Street Trading Legislation 
 
The Act governing street trading within the Waverley area is the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (LG(MP)A 1982) 
 
Street trading is defined as ‘Selling or exposing or offering for sale of any articles 
(including a living thing) in a street’ – para 1(1) of Schedule 4 of the Act. Street has an 
extended definition to include any road footway beach or other area to which the public 
have access without payment and a service area. 
 
Certain activities are specifically excluded from the definition of street trading – by virtue of 
para 1(2) of Schedule 4, some of which are: 
 

- Trading by a pedlar under a pedlar’s certificate 

- Trading by some news vendors 

- Trading on a street adjoining a shop and as part of the business of the shop 

- Trading at a petrol filling station 

Paragraph 2 of Schedule 4 LG (MP)A 1982 states that a district council may by resolution 
designate any street in their district as—  
 
(a)  a prohibited street; which means a street in which street trading is prohibited.  
(b)  a licence street; which means a street in which street trading is prohibited without a 

licence granted by the district council. 
(c)  a consent street; means a street in which street trading is prohibited without the 

consent of the district council. 
  

Page 9



Annexe B 
 
 
Standard Consent Conditions 

(to be used on all Consents issued) 
 

1. ‘Consent Street’ means a street in which street trading is prohibited without a 
Consent from Waverley Borough Council 
 

2. ‘Prohibited Street’ means a street in which street trading is prohibited at all times 
 

3. ‘Street’ includes any road, footway, lay-by or other open area to which the public 
have access without payment 

 
4. ‘Street Trading’ means (generally) the selling, or exposing or offering for sale, any 

article in a street 
 

5. The trader shall not cause any obstruction of the street or any danger to any 
persons or vehicles using the street 

 
6. The trader shall not cause any nuisance or annoyance to any other person, whether 

that person is using the street or otherwise, or to the occupier of any building in 
proximity to the consent site 
 

7. Mobile food traders shall have a minimum FSA Food Hygiene Rating Score of level 
3 or above. 

 
8. The council may at any time vary the conditions of a street trading consent or 

revoke the consent at any time 
 

9. Public liability insurance providing cover to a minimum amount of 5 million pounds 
must be in place for the consent site and a certificate of this must be produced on 
request of an officer of Waverley Borough Council. The person applying for street 
trading consent is responsible for providing this insurance, and applies to individual 
applicants (Schedule 1 event), or the organiser (Schedule 2 event). 

 
10. An individual trader shall conspicuously display the council issued Consent at all 

times whilst trading; for special events, the Consent will be displayed in at least two 
conspicuous places – typically these shall be attached to the first and last stalls 

 
11. The Consent holder must provide facilities for use by him/herself and customers to 

collect any waste, refuse or litter.  The refuse storage must be of a substantial 
construction, waterproof and animal-proof.  All must be removed from the trading 
location at the end of each day’s trading and properly disposed of, or if the amount 
of waste and refuse warrants it, when the container is full – whichever is the sooner. 

 
12. The Consent holder shall ensure that all adjacent areas (except the carriageway if 

open for vehicular use) to a distance of 10 metres be kept free of litter and refuse at 
all times whilst on site. 
 

Page 10



13.  Authorised vehicles must be roadworthy, have current relevant documentation and 
internal and external appearance of vehicles &/or stalls shall be maintained in a 
clean, neat and tidy condition. 
 

14. Any stall or vehicle used for street trading must be immediately removable at all 
times in the event of an emergency, or at any other time, be removed at the request 
of any officers of the emergency services or officer of the Council. 

 
15. The name and address of the operator and other address at which the stall or 

authorised vehicle is normally kept or garaged must be conspicuously and legibly 
displayed upon it in a place where the public may readily view it. 

 
16. No stall or vehicle shall remain situated for longer than one hour after the 

authorised trading time(s). 
 

17. No Consent holder shall trade at his / her authorised location on dates when road 
closure directives are in place for special events otherwise than with the permission 
of the organisation applying for same. 

 
18.  The Consent is non-transferable. 

 
19.  Where a structure or vehicle is not removed at the end of trading, no additional 

permanent or semi-permanent additions or paving shall be erected or constructed 
adjacent to the structure or vehicle. 

 
20. Failure to comply with any conditions attached to the Consent may result in the 

revocation of such consent. 
  

Page 11



Annexe C 
 

Pool of Conditions  

 

Conditions applicable to special Events / Markets, etc.  

 

The Consent holder shall keep records of each stallholder present, to include the stall’s 
site, name (and company name), address, vehicle registration and contact telephone 
number.  This must be produced on the request of an officer from the Council 

 

Other Conditions 

 

There shall be no available means of attracting attention for the purposes of trading or any 
stands or signs away from the consent site 
 
The consent holder must not permit the sale of offensive weapons including imitation 
firearms, firearms, airguns, swords and crossbows 
 
The consent holder must not sell a knife to anyone under 18. 
 
The Consent does not imply or give any other permission, consent, licence or 
authorisation to trade in any other products other than those granted on application or 
renewal 
 
The trader shall not exhibit on the site any advertising signs, posters or such like except as 
may be approved by the Council 
 
No animal shall be present on any stall or vehicle save assistance dogs in accordance with 
the Equality Act 2010  
 
The trader is not permitted to hold any auction or like sale 
 
The trader shall reimburse the Council’s costs in repairing all damaged caused by the 
trader’s occupation and use of the consent site 
 
There shall be no discharge of wastewater or other liquid waste onto the consent site or 
surrounding areas 
 
No form of amplified music shall be permitted 

 
  

Page 12



Annexe D 
 
Application by Silvio Brocardo of Mamma Lourdes 
 
 

  

Page 13



 
  
 

 
 

Page 14



Page 15



Annexe E 
 
Location Map of Proposed Site 
 
  

  

Page 16



 
Annexe F 

 
 
Consultation Response 
 
Response - Received 5 September 2021 
Respondent: Local Resident. 
 
Response Type: Objection 
Received via: email 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. LICENSING ACT 2003 - APPLICATION FOR A STREET TRADING LICENCE - Mamma Lourdes pizza van, Recreation Ground car park, Coxcombe Lane, Chiddingfold

